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          25

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    3

           1                 (HEARING COMMENCED AT 11:04 A.M.)

           2                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  If I could ask the

           3         commissioners to take their respective seats,

           4         please.  Okay, good morning, everyone.  We will

           5         call the meeting to order of the Narragansett Bay

           6         Commission, September 20, 2016 at 11:04 A.M.  I

           7         hope everyone had a wonderful summer.  I'm about

           8         to begin mine right after this meeting before

           9         Autumn is upon us.  So I'm happy to see everyone

          10         again, thank you.

          11                 The first thing I'd like to mention before

          12         I begin the meeting is -- this was handed to me

          13         today by Tom Uva.  Today, represents the third

          14         anniversary of the passing or our dear friend and

          15         Commissioner Mike Salvatore.  We miss him dearly,

          16         so I thought it was worth mentioning.  It's in

          17         today's paper.  Thank you, Tom, for bringing this

          18         to my attention.  I hadn't seen the paper yet this

          19         morning, so, this meeting is for Mike.

          20                 Okay, first order of business is the

          21         approval of the previous minutes of June 14, 2016

          22         and June 21, 2016.  Have all of our members had an

          23         opportunity to review the previous minutes, and if

          24         so, are there any comments, questions or



file:///Z|/...20Meetings-Minutes%202016/Board%20of%20Commissioners%20Meeting%20Minutes%20Open%20Session%209-20-2016.txt[10/24/2016 4:14:15 PM]

          25         corrections with regard to the June 14th and June

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    4

           1         21st minutes?

           2                 (NO RESPONSE)

           3                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none,

           4         Commissioner Farnum moves approval of the minutes,

           5         seconded by Commissioner Montanari and

           6         Commissioner MacQueen.  All of those that are in

           7         favor will say, "Aye."

           8                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)

           9                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any

          10         opposed?

          11                 (NO RESPONSE)

          12                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none

          13         opposed, and that motion carries.  The next order

          14         of business, item number 3 is Acknowledgment of

          15         Awards.  Mr. Secretary, do you have a report for

          16         us today regarding these awards?

          17                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  Yes, I do,

          18         Mr. Chairman.

          19                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Proceed.

          20                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  As you know,

          21         our operations staff does a tremendous job of

          22         running our two wastewater treatment facilities.

          23         In any given year there are thousands of
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          24         parameters that are monitored, and there are

          25         approximately 4,000 monitoring points that each of

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    5

           1         the plants has to meet in order to qualify for the

           2         awards we're about to present.

           3                 For a Silver Award, whether it's from the

           4         Narragansett Water Pollution Control Association,

           5         which is our local state agency or association --

           6         I should call it -- or the National Association of

           7         Clean Water Agencies, in order to get a Silver

           8         Award, you can have no more than five violations

           9         out of 4,000.  Actually, we like to call them

          10         excursions.  And for a Gold Award, you can't have

          11         any.  So just to frame this accomplishment in that

          12         light, this is a heck of an achievement.  So, I'm

          13         going to have the representatives from each of the

          14         plants come up.  I'll call Field's Point first,

          15         and I see Carmen there.  Paul Desrosiers is our

          16         manager of treatment and with him is Eric

          17         Bogoshian, one of our new young shift supervisors

          18         who's part of the future of the Narragansett Bay

          19         Commission.  So I'd like Paul and Eric to come up

          20         here to accept both the Narragansett Award and the

          21         NACWA award at the same time.  Do we have both

          22         awards?

          23                 MS. MUSUMECI:  Yes.
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          24                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  So they can

          25         each hold one.

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    6

           1                 (PICTURES TAKEN)

           2                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  Thank you,

           3         guys.  Great job.  I appreciate everything you do

           4         twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week.  While

           5         we're having Christmas and Thanksgiving dinner, we

           6         have people across the street and over at Bucklin

           7         Point managing those plants.  Now, receiving the

           8         Bucklin Point Award, which you see silver from

           9         Narragansett and gold from the National

          10         Association, I'm going to have Carmen -- he would

          11         like -- Mike Pariaseault, our Assistant Treatment

          12         Manager and T.J. Harrington, another one of our

          13         young up and coming shift supervisors.  It's okay

          14         to smile guys.

          15                 (PICTURES TAKEN)

          16                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  So the last

          17         award we want to acknowledge is from the

          18         Providence Business News:  Best places to work in

          19         2015.  This is probably the fifth out of six years

          20         that we've won this.  I think the only way we

          21         didn't win it is somehow we missed the application

          22         deadline.  It's always been a great place to work,
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          23         and that's acknowledged by the folks who work here

          24         because they have to weigh in on this award with

          25         online polling.  So I'd like Brenda Smith from HR

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    7

           1         and Diane Buerger from Labor Relations to come up

           2         and be acknowledged for this award.

           3                 (PICTURES TAKEN)

           4                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  All right.  This is

           5         great.  This is great.

           6                 (AUDIENCE APPLAUDS)

           7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay, moving right

           8         along.

           9                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  I know, you

          10         have to ask me if I have a report.

          11                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  All right.  Item

          12         number 4 is the Executive Director's Report.  Mr.

          13         Secretary, do you have a report for us today?

          14                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  Yes, I do.

          15                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Then proceed.

          16                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  This is over

          17         three months now, so I hope you all will have

          18         coffee in front of you or some other stimulant

          19         because you might need it.  Okay, so, overall over

          20         the summer treatment levels have been very good,

          21         however, we did have one problem back in June at

          22         Bucklin Point where we did not meet our nitrogen
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          23         limit.  We were at 5.31 for the month.  So that

          24         was disappointing.  They measure it in two ways:

          25         One is your concentration, which is the five parts

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    8

           1         per million.  The other is your loading, which is

           2         in pounds per day.

           3                 We easily met the pounds per day loading

           4         number, we did not meet the number for

           5         concentration at Bucklin Point for nitrogen, but

           6         we did achieve it in May and then in July and

           7         August, and now into September, the plant is

           8         running well.  What happened, based on the

           9         analysis that we did on this, is that we were

          10         having some problems in another part of the plant,

          11         one of the side streams we call them, and we were

          12         trying to get that under control.

          13                 We installed a system, which while they

          14         addressed that side problem, it caused a problem

          15         with the main treatment process.  And, so, we

          16         recognized it fairly quickly and were able to make

          17         the adjustment, but it wasn't quick enough because

          18         we don't sample for nitrogen every day.  We

          19         already had some bad numbers, so by the time we

          20         got it under turned around, we weren't able to

          21         sneak in under the five parts per million.  For
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          22         August, for example, we were down to 2.33, so we

          23         did recover fairly quickly.  July was 3.75.  So I

          24         wanted to bring that to your attention.  It also

          25         resulted in a one-day fecal violation as well

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    9

           1         because of the interference with the ultraviolet

           2         light disinfection system.

           3                 Field's Point had good numbers all summer.

           4         We're essentially averaging about 3.5 or 3.6 parts

           5         per million over the course of the entire season

           6         for nitrogen removal, and that extends right into

           7         October, the end of October.  So, other than that,

           8         the numbers were really good.  Other than that, at

           9         Field's Point that emergency blower contract that

          10         we initiated two years ago has been in place for

          11         this entire summer and is working well.

          12                 It gives us the reserved capacity for

          13         treatment purposes that we need, and as long as

          14         the triple blowers continue to remain available

          15         we're in good shape until we get the long-term

          16         blower contract in place, which should go out to

          17         bid sometime this fall, and it will come before

          18         you for award once the bids are in.  But, we had a

          19         good summer in that regard.  We didn't have any

          20         close calls in terms of the amount of air that we

          21         needed at Field's Point because of the interim
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          22         steps that we have taken.

          23                 It's been a dry summer as you well know,

          24         and the tunnel has been used sparingly.  In July,

          25         we only captured 47 million gallons of flow.

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    10

           1         Based on a couple of rainstorms in August -- 95

           2         million gallons, and all of that was pumped back

           3         to the plant for full treatment.  At Bucklin

           4         Point, those rainstorms that occurred, for the

           5         most part were contained in the wet weather tanks,

           6         and so they received primary treatment and

           7         disinfection as well as de-chlorination before

           8         they were discharged.  We only had one minor

           9         overflow from the north divergent structure, which

          10         is just upstream of the plant of like .16 million

          11         gallons.

          12                 So those types of events will be removed

          13         once we get the new CSO system in place in the

          14         Bucklin Point District, just like it happened in

          15         the Field's Point District, but that's a few years

          16         down the road.  In interceptor maintenance there

          17         were no dry weather overflows in either month,

          18         July or August.  Engineering is working on the

          19         completion of designs for some projects.  We

          20         expect to bid this fall and into the winter, the
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          21         Moshassuck Valley Interceptor Repair and

          22         Replacement, Providence River 78 Interceptor

          23         Repair for long-term aeration, the project at

          24         Field's Point, and we have an accumulation of

          25         small projects that we'll put out to bid which are

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)
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           1         associated with the interceptors, some spot

           2         repairs and some lining projects.

           3                 So those will be coming up.  Phase III,

           4         work on the CSO continues with the evaluation of

           5         optimizing the facilities that we plan for Phase

           6         III, so that we can achieve maximum effectiveness

           7         at the lowest cost.  We're doing extensive

           8         hydraulic modeling, field metering of the flows, a

           9         capacity analysis at Bucklin Point to see what we

          10         can absorb during a normal rain event.  We're also

          11         doing a lot of detailed mapping to try to make

          12         sure we route all of these facilities efficiently.

          13         We also have to do an environmental assessment

          14         that's being undertaken at DEM's request.

          15                 We still have no formal response from DEM

          16         on their re-evaluation report.  We've gone back

          17         and forth with a couple of letters.  The last one

          18         we sent them was in June and, so, it's important

          19         to note, though, that we owe them a few numbers on

          20         overflows.  That's what that hydraulic modeling is
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          21         helping us do, which is further refine exactly

          22         what type of overalls we'll see further up in the

          23         system as we just do 3A, as opposed to a

          24         combination of 3A and 3B, which we've outlined to

          25         you before.  It's not something we want to proceed

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    12

           1         with at this point.  It's actually looking very

           2         favorable so, you know, we keep moving along.  We

           3         are making progress even though we don't have any

           4         formal "okay" from DEM to move ahead with what

           5         we've recommended.  Anything we're doing now, we

           6         need to do in either case.

           7                 Under "Construction," we finished up the

           8         water quality science building, also known as the

           9         "Lab."  Our staff has moved in both the laboratory

          10         folks and the EMDA staff as well.  So, they're all

          11         in there and they love they're new environment.

          12         At Field's Point we have an electrical substation

          13         upgrade that is nearing completion, which is

          14         starting the final clarifier improvement contract

          15         that was awarded back in June.  In Cumberland, the

          16         Abbott Valley Interceptor Easement Clearing Work,

          17         they're about 50 percent complete, and the East

          18         Providence Interceptor Improvements are about 80

          19         percent complete.  There's only one section of
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          20         lining left to do.

          21                 So, things are fairly quiet in

          22         construction right now.  Rich looks a little less

          23         stressed than he has been in the past several

          24         years, that's why.  Look, he's even smiling now.

          25                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  Don't go there.

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    13

           1                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  And A&F,

           2         they've been working on the audits all summer.

           3         Those will come before you today.  There are three

           4         audits for your approval, the Finance Committee

           5         just went over them.  They include our

           6         Comprehensive Annual Financial Audit, a single

           7         Federal Funds Audit and a Non-Union Defined

           8         Benefit Plan Audit.  So those will all require

           9         your approval.  Standard of cause reaffirmed our

          10         AA minus rating, and customer service billed in

          11         July and August a total of $16 million, and we

          12         collected a total of $16.8 million during that

          13         time period.  So, the billings are good and the

          14         collections are good.  So, financially, we're in

          15         very good shape right now.

          16                 The Policy Planning and Regulation, we

          17         decided in July that a contractual arrangement for

          18         solar power with Coronal Municipal Energy Services

          19         was not going to work out in our best interest, so
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          20         we terminated negotiations with them.  A new RFP

          21         has been drafted and establishing a better set of

          22         parameters from which we can move forward on.  For

          23         example, one of the things we're going to require

          24         now is that they must have site control when they

          25         make their submission.  That was one of the

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    14

           1         problems we were having with Coronal.  I mean,

           2         they would never identify what sites our

           3         facilities were going to go on.  So you'll hear a

           4         little more about this effort under the Chairman's

           5         Report, but it's something that we'll be moving

           6         forward with in the next few months.

           7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  All right.

           8                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  Solar

           9         energy.

          10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Oh, yes.  I forgot

          11         about that now.

          12                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  So we've

          13         been working with DEM on several matters.  Tom has

          14         been going back and forth with them on our new

          15         discharge permits for the Field's Point and

          16         Bucklin Point plants.  We have met internally.

          17         There has probably been a dozen of us around the

          18         table on a couple of occasions.  Trying to go back
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          19         and forth with DEM trying to hammer out all the

          20         details on what a new permit should look like.  I

          21         wouldn't say there's anything really major, but

          22         there's a bunch of smaller items and overarching

          23         wording that we're not comfortable with that we

          24         figured we might as well try to get as much as we

          25         want worded the way we want as we move forward.

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    15

           1         In the meantime, we continue to operate under the

           2         existing permits.

           3                 Also, there was a pre-treatment audit

           4         where DEM came in and took a look at everything

           5         that the pre-treatment folks do.  I believe that

           6         one of the things that they were least happy with

           7         was that we don't take enough enforcement actions

           8         against our industrial and business base.  As

           9         opposed to working with them cooperatively and

          10         trying to help them make corrective actions,

          11         supposedly -- but we've been encouraged to take

          12         more enforcement actions.  It's not really our

          13         style.

          14                 As Vin likes to say, "We want to be part

          15         of the solution and not part of the problem."  So

          16         we're working out some issues with DEM in that

          17         respect.  Water quality sample and analysis

          18         efforts have been very robust during the summer
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          19         period with good water quality results being

          20         documented.

          21                 Moving on to "Executive."  Laurie Horridge

          22         has spent many hours working on agreements and the

          23         purchasing of the turbines in Coventry from the

          24         Wind Energy Development folks.  You'll hear more

          25         on that in the Executive Session later in the

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    16

           1         meeting.  She has some details that she'd like to

           2         share with you, but that's happened at that time;

           3         so, later in the meeting.  Laurie also did a great

           4         job on negotiating with DEM.  A solution to a

           5         violation notice was received at Bucklin Point

           6         back when we were doing the construction.  You

           7         probably remember that.  While we were under

           8         construction we had tanks out of service.

           9         Upgrading the facility we had some large storms,

          10         and there were some excursions of our permit that

          11         DEM was not willing to give us a pass on.  So,

          12         Laurie has negotiated.  Rather than pay a fine of

          13         any kind, we're going to.

          14                 MS. HORRIDGE:  We're going to sponsor two

          15         shellfishing events where we will be giving about

          16         25,000 to eligible fisherman.  That's in lieu of a

          17         $37,500 penalty.  So, at least we'll put the money



file:///Z|/...20Meetings-Minutes%202016/Board%20of%20Commissioners%20Meeting%20Minutes%20Open%20Session%209-20-2016.txt[10/24/2016 4:14:15 PM]

          18         to good use.

          19                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  So this is a

          20         shellfish transplant event like we used to have

          21         several years ago.  We financed it for a while,

          22         then DEM took over the financing.  And, by the

          23         way, we always worked cooperatively with them, and

          24         it really went well.  Then, DEM ran out of money

          25         for -- or they weren't given the money to do that,

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    17

           1         so that has not happened, I don't believe, in a

           2         recent year or two.  Is that right, Tom?

           3                 MR. UVA:  Yeah, several years.

           4                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  So the

           5         shellfishermen will, you know, be happy to hear

           6         about this.  That's how we resolved that matter.

           7         We've had several public education and outreach

           8         projects happening or in development.  We had a

           9         really good joint press release with Save The Bay

          10         when they had their Swim the Bay event.  We

          11         compared bay water quality, which the folks here

          12         were able to enjoy, versus the Olympic water

          13         quality that the people down in Brazil had to

          14         endure.  So that seemed to come out pretty well, I

          15         think.  I think Commissioner Nathan really liked

          16         that one, if I remember correctly.

          17                 We're also working on some EPA-generated
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          18         education programs.  They're called Project Wild

          19         and Aquatic Wild.  They're teacher-training

          20         programs that help in the environmental education

          21         field.  Cynthia Morissette who works for us --

          22         she's out today, otherwise, I would acknowledge

          23         her -- she's out at schools teaching her program.

          24         She taught 18 teachers so that they can use that

          25         program in their own classroom.  So that was a

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    18

           1         really good outreach on our part.  We're also

           2         upgrading the curriculum on our Watershed

           3         Explorer's program and website.

           4                 We're starting a new Residential Grease

           5         Disposal Program.  You'll like this.  It's called,

           6         "Mr. Can versus the Grease Beast."  We're going to

           7         be rolling it out in the fall.  It's been done in

           8         other locations throughout the country.  It's been

           9         very effective.  You essentially educate the

          10         homeowners about how dumping grease down their

          11         sinks is a really bad thing, not only for their

          12         own internal plumbing, but also for the pipes that

          13         we own out in the streets.  So it's something

          14         you'll be hearing about, or if it happens to catch

          15         your ear sometime and you wonder what it's all

          16         about, at least you have a little bit of a heads
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          17         up.

          18                 We are sponsoring a Water Quality Science

          19         Career Day on October 21st.  Jamie is heading this

          20         up, and she's getting real good support from our

          21         environmental scientists and EMDA and other

          22         locations, and it's for high school kids.  Right

          23         now, I think we have about 40 students signed up

          24         for that, and we're going to have an open house at

          25         the Bucklin Point Wastewater Treatment Facility

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    19

           1         either later this fall or next spring, depending

           2         on a few things falling into place.  I received

           3         some very positive media attention over the summer

           4         with the following items.  As a matter of fact

           5         today, there's an interview with Vin in

           6         GoLocalProv, if you want to check that out, and

           7         Vin was also at the Citizens Bank Groundbreaking

           8         on August 31st.  I think they even gave you a

           9         shovel, didn't they?

          10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Well, they haven't

          11         given it to me yet, but I'm expecting one.  And if

          12         I don't get it, I'm going to close down my

          13         account.

          14                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  I was not

          15         able to attend that, but I understand that we

          16         received a lot of nice compliments from the
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          17         dignitaries that were there.  Vin can expound upon

          18         that as well.  Tom Uva was interviewed for a

          19         national public radio piece recently.  Isaiah

          20         Roberts, one of our young engineers, was also

          21         interviewed by Go Local last week as well.  That

          22         was a very nice piece.  I was interviewed by

          23         Channel 12 on August 19th live on TV.  That was

          24         real nerve-wracking, I can tell you that, and the

          25         Providence Business News is also supposed to have

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)
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           1         another article on us in the upcoming week or two.

           2         So we're getting a lot of positive press.  Jamie

           3         has been working hard to make sure that we get the

           4         exposure that we deserve.

           5                 One announcement I'm proud to make is that

           6         the major organizations associated with the

           7         wastewater industry NACWA, the Water Environment

           8         Federation, a number of the research foundations

           9         and EPA itself have developed a new nationwide

          10         awards program called Utility of the Future Today,

          11         and it's focused on public entities that are on

          12         the leading edge of the industry.  They're

          13         programs in place that address high levels of

          14         treatment, energy conservation, renewable energy

          15         savings or sourcing, asset management programs,
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          16         strong financial planning, educational

          17         programming.  And we've been selected as one of 60

          18         entities in the country who will receive this

          19         award at WEFTEC at the end of the month.

          20                 So it was an extensive application and

          21         review process.  Tom Uva put it together, along

          22         with Jamie, and we -- I guess we impressed them

          23         enough that they're going to give us one of these

          24         awards.  It's the first time these awards have

          25         been given, and it's going to be something that
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           1         periodically we'll be able to apply for.  I don't

           2         know that everyone is eligible every year.

           3         Sometimes these are three or five-year awards, so

           4         we're really proud of that.  We'll show you the

           5         award at our next meeting after we pick it up.

           6                 And, finally, I know the Board has spent

           7         many hours discussing the cost associated with

           8         Phase III of the CSO Program, and the rate impacts

           9         that will have on the users of our system, and

          10         although we have a three or four-year

          11         stabilization period right now of our rates, once

          12         construction on Phase III begins in four years or

          13         so, affordability will become a concern.  There

          14         have been suggestions among the board members that

          15         the Clean Water Act should somehow be amended or
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          16         modified.  Well, we actually have some movement in

          17         that area.

          18                 The Water Resources Development Act, also

          19         known as WRDA has been kicking around in congress

          20         now for a couple of years and NACWA, who we're an

          21         active member of, has worked relentlessly on

          22         getting this legislation to move.  And, finally,

          23         last week in a bipartisan effort, the full senate

          24         voted 94-3 to approve the WRDA Act, and this will

          25         better define affordability.  It will allow
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           1         integrated planning.  It will establish a clean

           2         water trust fund, and it will require EPA to

           3         revise its 1997 CSO affordability guidelines.  So

           4         this is a huge step forward, but it's only one

           5         step.  Now the house has to act on their version

           6         of this bill, and that's expected to pass in a

           7         bipartisan effort this week.

           8                 So, it's something that we talked about

           9         amongst ours over the last year or two.  It seems

          10         as though we have some really opportunity to maybe

          11         effect some of these approaches, which will grant

          12         some relief, especially to the low income folks

          13         within all of our districts throughout the

          14         country.  And Jamie and I met with Congressman
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          15         Langevin Friday and asked for his support.  He

          16         indicated that he would have it.  If it passes in

          17         the house this week, which they're going to

          18         adjourn at the end of the week, then there will be

          19         a conference committee when the Lame duck congress

          20         comes back after the election.

          21                 So it's something that has been a longtime

          22         coming, and I think it will be very advantageous

          23         for this organization as well as our rate payers,

          24         and let's just hope that the way it looks at this

          25         point, that it plays out over the next few days.

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)
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           1         That is it, Mr. Chairman.

           2                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  So, having

           3         heard the Executive Director's Report.

           4                 COMMISSIONER HANDY:  I just wonder if that

           5         passes, will it impact Phase III, and we'll be

           6         back to discussing what we're doing in Phase III.

           7                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  It could

           8         have an impact depending on exactly what the final

           9         wording looks like.  It will not eliminate the

          10         need for Phase III.  That won't happen, but it may

          11         give us more flexibility on how we roll out Phase

          12         III.  The timing of it, what size are the

          13         different phases, and in the Clean Water Trust

          14         Fund, there's been some thought that maybe that
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          15         fund could have a component in it which will be

          16         used for supplementing rates for low-income folks.

          17         That a lot easier said than done.

          18                 That's a lot easier said than done, right?

          19         That sound so easy when I said it.  So you can

          20         imagine what that might entail over the next few

          21         years, if things do move in that direction; both

          22         on the national level and on the local level, but

          23         it's hope, it's opportunity.  And, you know, we'll

          24         see how it all plays out.

          25                 COMMISSIONER HANDY:  Can you distribute

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)
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           1         that legislation?

           2                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  Sure.  I'm

           3         going to ask, Jamie, can you post all the

           4         legislation on wording that you have, including

           5         all the NACWA's comments and press releases, I

           6         guess, I'd call them.

           7                 MS. SAMONS:  Press releases.

           8                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  Okay.  Thank

           9         you.

          10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  So all the

          11         commissioners have heard the Executive Director's

          12         Report.  Pursuant to the report, do any of our

          13         commissioners have comments or questions regarding
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          14         the report?  Further comments or questions

          15         regarding the Executive Director's Report?

          16                 (NO RESPONSE)

          17                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  Hearing none,

          18         moving along to Committee Reports and Action Items

          19         Resulting.  First committee reporting this morning

          20         is the construction, engineering and operations

          21         committee.  Chair MacQueen, do you have a report

          22         for us today?

          23                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  Yes, I do.

          24                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Please proceed.

          25                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  We had three items

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    25

           1         for action, and they were all passed by this

           2         committee.  The first one:  Review and Approval of

           3         Resolution 2016:21:  Authorization to Negotiate a

           4         Contract for Pipe Evaluation Services for Contract

           5         16:304.74PM - Evaluation of the Blackstone Valley

           6         Interceptor (Amount $60,000).

           7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to

           8         approve Resolution 2016:21.  Seconded by

           9         Commissioner Montanari.  Explanation, Mr.

          10         Secretary?

          11                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  Quickly, the

          12         Blackstone Valley Interceptor, we've done some

          13         initial inspection of it.  We feel that we need
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          14         more hi-tech inspection.  This is for about 6,700

          15         feet of pipe which is 90-inch in size, and we did

          16         an RFQP.  We got two responses from firms, and we

          17         had a review committee look over those responses,

          18         and the proposal that they liked best was from Red

          19         Zone Robotics.  The price is just under $40,000.

          20         We realize that there's going to be some unknowns

          21         in this, so we've asked for your approval of

          22         $60,000.  So we have some extra money for data

          23         processing and analysis as well as a contingency.

          24         That's what Resolution 2016:21 is all about.

          25         We're asking for a total of $60,000 to effectuate
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           1         this project.

           2                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion.  Do

           3         we have a second for the explanation from the

           4         executive director.  Are there any questions in

           5         regards to Resolution 2016:21?

           6                 (NO RESPONSE)

           7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of

           8         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."

           9                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)

          10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any

          11         opposed?

          12                 (NO RESPONSE)
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          13                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none

          14         opposed and the motion carries.  Further report,

          15         Chairman MacQueen?

          16                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  Review and

          17         Approval of Resolution 2016:22; Award of Contract

          18         304.63SS - Rehabilitation of the Seekonk Siphon

          19         Inlet Structure, and I move to pass.

          20                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to

          21         Approval Resolution 2016:22; Award of Contract

          22         304.63SS - Rehabilitation of the Seekonk Siphon.

          23         Is there a second?  Seconded by Commissioner

          24         Farnum and Commissioner Montanari.  A brief

          25         explanation, Mr. Director?

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)
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           1                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  Yes, this

           2         facility or structure was built back in the early

           3         1950s.  It is concrete, and it is beginning to

           4         deteriorate due to the corrosive conditions that

           5         you find in a sewer system.  We need to restore

           6         the structural integrity of the structure, and

           7         we're going to use a coding system that we

           8         specified.  We put this out to bid in July.  We

           9         received four bids and of the four bidders the

          10         lowest responsive and responsible bidder is R.

          11         Zoppo Corporation at $167,000.

          12                 They have done work for us before.
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          13         They've done a good job, and as a result, we

          14         request your approval of 2016:22 to award this

          15         contract to R. Zoppo for an amount not to exceed

          16         $167,000.

          17                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  We have a

          18         motion.  We have a second.  Discussion on

          19         resolution 2016:22?  Mr. Carlino?

          20                 COMMISSIONER CARLINO:  Quick question:  Is

          21         it an epoxy that they spray inside and, if so, how

          22         thick is it?

          23                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  Yes.  I'm

          24         not sure how thick it is.  I was looking to see if

          25         there was somebody out there who might know.  Tom?

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)
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           1                 MR. UVA:  An inch or so.

           2                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Is there an answer?

           3                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  Yes.  He

           4         said an inch or so.

           5                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  "Or so."  Further

           6         discussion for Resolution 2016:22?

           7                 (NO RESPONSE)

           8                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all

           9         those in favor will say, "Aye."

          10                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)

          11                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any
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          12         opposed?

          13                 (NO RESPONSE)

          14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none

          15         opposed, and that motion carries.  Further report,

          16         Commissioner MacQueen?

          17                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  Review and

          18         Approval of Resolution 2016:26; 304.57D - Request

          19         for Additional Funds for Environmental Assessment

          20         and Design Modification, and I move approval.

          21                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to

          22         approve Resolution 2016:26, seconded by

          23         Commissioner Montanari and Commissioner Farnum.

          24         Further discussion?  Mr. Secretary?

          25                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  Yes.  This
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           1         is a request to approve the authorized amount --

           2         to increase it from 240,000 to $270,000.  So it

           3         was a $30,000 increase.  The project involves

           4         rehabilitation and replacement of the 78-inch

           5         interceptor that is just downstream of the

           6         Providence River Siphon.  It's essentially almost

           7         right underneath the I-195 overpass as you go down

           8         by the hurricane barrier.  We've done an

           9         evaluation of the pipe.  We've done some final

          10         design.

          11                 The price of the job is now expected to be
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          12         with design modifications about $6.4 million, and

          13         because we have modified the design to get the

          14         work out from underneath I-195, and DEM has

          15         required or is requiring an environmental

          16         assessment on this project, which we do not

          17         anticipate because we figured that we'd get a

          18         categorical exclusion because we're replacing the

          19         pipe in kind, but they want one, so to do the

          20         extra work, what we need is an increase of $30,000

          21         from your prior authorization, and that's what's

          22         contained in Resolution 2016:26.

          23                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  We've all

          24         heard the explanation.  We have a motion, we have

          25         a second.  Discussion?  Questions?
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           1                 (NO RESPONSE)

           2                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of

           3         those that are in favor of passage of Resolution

           4         2016:26 will say, "Aye."

           5                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)

           6                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any

           7         opposed.

           8                 (NO RESPONSE)

           9                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none

          10         opposed, and that motion also carries.
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          11         Commissioner MacQueen, do you have a further

          12         report?

          13                 COMMISSION MacQUEEN:  That's all I have.

          14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  That concludes the

          15         construction, engineering and operations committee

          16         report for today.  Next committee reporting will

          17         be the Finance Committee.  In the absence of

          18         Commissioner Andrade for the subcommittee meeting,

          19         the Chairman held the meeting.  We heard an

          20         explanation, detailed explanation of the annual

          21         report, I think we're about to hear some of the

          22         high points on that again.  Kyle?  Kyle, do you

          23         want to come up and take a seat?  So the Finance

          24         Committee heard the details of the financial

          25         report.  Kyle, you're going to give us some of the
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           1         highlights; right?

           2                 MR. CONNORS:  Absolutely.  Thank you,

           3         again, for having us here.  I mentioned it at the

           4         Finance Committee Meeting, but we had a very

           5         smooth audit process.  Your finance team, Karen

           6         and Leah and the staff do a great job.  They were

           7         very prepared for us, making it very smooth.  So

           8         the actual financial statements, the audited

           9         financial statements start on page 13 of the CAFR,

          10         it's the big report.  It's our independent
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          11         Auditor's Report.  This is an unmodified report,

          12         and we did not have any auditor proposed entries.

          13         And, as I said before, that means the information

          14         that Karen is providing to you is reliable

          15         information throughout the year, which is very

          16         important.

          17                 Pages 16 through 20 are the Management's

          18         Discussion and Analysis.  The most notable area to

          19         note here is on page 20.  You'll see there was an

          20         increase of $4 million in your user fees, and

          21         that's related to a 2.37 percent rate increase

          22         effective July 1, 2015.  Pages 24 and 25 are your

          23         balance sheet.  The biggest difference compared to

          24         the prior year here is the Rhode Island

          25         Infrastructure bank receivable of $52 million, and
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           1         the corresponding increase in loans from the Rhode

           2         Island infrastructure bank, as there were two new

           3         loans totaling $64 million taken out in fiscal

           4         '16.

           5                 You'll also notice on page 25 the ERSRI

           6         state pension plan liability of 16 million, and

           7         the non-union defined benefit pension plan, that's

           8         the private plan for NBC's liability of $4

           9         million, and I can get into that information as we
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          10         get to the notes to the financial statements.  The

          11         Net Position for the commission was $452 million,

          12         367 million of which is invested in capital assets

          13         not related to debt, and 85 1/2 million is

          14         unrestricted.

          15                 The income statement showed a $29 million

          16         turn back in the current year, and that's on page

          17         26.  So, it was a good year.  Page 29 is the start

          18         of the notes to the financial statement.  There

          19         were no significant changes in accounting

          20         policies.  I'll go through and point out some of

          21         the more important notes for the Board to see.

          22         Page 34 is the capital asset note.  It's a

          23         breakout of NBC's capital assets, if you wanted to

          24         see what type of assets the commission is

          25         investing in.  There's about $965.8 million worth
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           1         of capital assets on the books.

           2                 Page 35 and 36 are outstanding loans, and

           3         you'll see here there were two loans retired in

           4         the current year and two loans totaling $64

           5         million taken out with the RIIB in FY-'16.  Page

           6         38 shows the same thing for bonds payables.

           7         Payments for those bonds begin in 2021.  Page 40

           8         is the beginning of the pension plan notes.  This

           9         was a big inclusion in last year's report, all the
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          10         disclosure for Gatsby 67 and 68.  One of the

          11         things I wanted to point out is that in comparing

          12         each plan is that the state plan compared to the

          13         private plan, the private plan is a lot more

          14         conservative with regard to the assumptions that

          15         NBC is making.

          16                 So, on page 43, you'll see that the state

          17         plan, the ERSRI plan has an investment rate of

          18         return of 7 1/2 percent anticipated, whereas, the

          19         commission uses 6 percent, which is a much lower

          20         rate, and that impact can be seen on page 44.  How

          21         the change in discount rate can have an affect on

          22         your liability.  So, if that discount rate is

          23         lower, your liability is going to go up

          24         significantly.  So, right now, the state is at

          25         7 1/2 percent, and the private plan uses a more
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           1         conservative approach and uses 6 percent.

           2                 Page 46 is the beginning of the private

           3         pension plan, and you'll notice on page 50, total

           4         pension liability was 7.5 million, and the plan's

           5         net position.  The total assets of the plan is

           6         13.5 million, and that plan is funded at 77

           7         percent as of June 30th, '16, which compared to a

           8         lot of other entities is very high.  Always aiming
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           9         for 100, and 77 percent is head and shoulders

          10         above a lot of the other organizations that we

          11         work with.  So, you're certainly moving in the

          12         right direction.

          13                 On page 52, you'll see that discount rate

          14         of 6 percent.  It shows a liability of 4 million.

          15         If that discount rate were to increase or decrease

          16         by 1 percent, you can see the drastic affect it

          17         would have on the liability.  You'll also notice

          18         on page 56 the comparison in the last three years

          19         of the funded ratio for the private plan.  This is

          20         showing in June 30 there was a 73 percent plan

          21         funded, and that decreased last year.  The reason

          22         it decreased last year to 69 percent was due to

          23         the updating of the mortality schedules by NBC,

          24         and you guys are using the most recent available

          25         information for your mortality schedules.  As
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           1         people are living longer, which is a good thing,

           2         the costs go up.  But in the current year, that

           3         funded rate went up to 8 percent due to

           4         contributions of $1.1 million in excess of what

           5         was anticipated by the commission.

           6                 Page 61, this is the budget and actual for

           7         operating and non-operating expenses.  Some of the

           8         more notable differences, there was a savings --
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           9         you'll see on page 62 -- of $513,000 for bio-solid

          10         disposal.  It was budgeted at 4.8.  It came in at

          11         4.3, and that was just due to less activity in the

          12         current year with regard to disposal of

          13         bio-solids.  Page 63, there was a $1.5 million

          14         savings in interest.  The budget was set at 1.9,

          15         and due to the fact that it's a variable interest

          16         rate, it came in significantly lower than

          17         budgeted.

          18                 There was also $706,000 budgeted for new

          19         debt.  The new debt was acquired, but was not

          20         acquired until later in the year than anticipated.

          21         So that interest wasn't required to be paid in

          22         fiscal '16.  With regard to capital outlay, there

          23         were a couple of renovations that were budgeted in

          24         fiscal '16 that didn't end up taking place in May.

          25         It may take place in FY'17.  The rest of the
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           1         report, pages 70 through 90 are statistical

           2         schedules required to be included in the CAFR.

           3         It's unaudited information, but it does tie to our

           4         figures in the financial statements.  The most

           5         notable to bring to your attention is page 86, and

           6         this shows your debt cover ratio.  You always want

           7         it to be over 1.  It' nearly 1 1/2 in the current
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           8         year, which is a good sign.

           9                 Lastly, page 91 is our report on Internal

          10         Controls Over Financial Reporting.  On this

          11         particular report, we would include any

          12         significant deficiencies or material weaknesses as

          13         it relates to your internal controls, and we had

          14         nothing to report, which is a good thing.  That's

          15         it.  If there are any questions?

          16                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So the Finance

          17         Committee heard a more detailed review of the

          18         financial report.  You've heard some of the

          19         highlights regarding the financial reports.  Do

          20         any of our commissioners have any questions with

          21         regard to the financial report?  Of course, Karen

          22         always remains available to answer your questions,

          23         if not today, any other today.

          24                 (NO RESPONSE)

          25                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So, if there are no
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           1         other questions, the chairman moves that we

           2         approve Resolution 2016:23, that's the

           3         Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for June

           4         30th, 2016.

           5                 COMMISSIONER ANDRADE:  Second.

           6                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Seconded by

           7         Commissioner Andrade, Commissioner Kimball.



file:///Z|/...20Meetings-Minutes%202016/Board%20of%20Commissioners%20Meeting%20Minutes%20Open%20Session%209-20-2016.txt[10/24/2016 4:14:15 PM]

           8         Further discussion -- Commissioner Milas.  Further

           9         discussion?

          10                 (NO RESPONSE)

          11                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of

          12         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."

          13                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)

          14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any

          15         opposed?

          16                 (NO RESPONSE)

          17                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none

          18         opposed.  That motion carries.  Additionally, we

          19         had a matter regarding Resolution 2016:24, which

          20         is Review and Approval of the Single Audit Report,

          21         which deals with federal funds, and Kyle is going

          22         to review that for us.  But, before we get to the

          23         discussion, the chairman moves that we approve

          24         Resolution 2016:24 subject to discussion.

          25         Seconded by Commissioner Kimball and Commissioner

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)
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           1         Farnum.  Kyle?

           2                 MR. CONNORS:  Sure.  This is the Single

           3         Audit Report.  This report represents an in-depth

           4         audit of the federal dollars that NBC received in

           5         fiscal '16.  We're required to issue this report

           6         if NBC receives federal funds over $750,000.  In
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           7         the current year they received $8.3 million.  It

           8         was passed through the Rhode Island Infrastructure

           9         Bank and, so, because it's federal dollars, we're

          10         required to test various compliance requirements.

          11         Page 1 is our report over internal controls with

          12         regard to financial reporting, and we had no

          13         findings in the current year.  Internal controls

          14         were sufficient.

          15                 Page 3 is our report on compliance with

          16         federal requirements.  We have to test a lot of

          17         areas, make sure costs are allowable.  There's a

          18         heavy emphasis on the procurement policies and

          19         procedures of NBC.  So we tested a lot of the bids

          20         and a lot of the procedures that relate to bid

          21         proposals, and we have no issues to report to you.

          22         Page 6 is the schedule expenditures of federal

          23         awards.  This is going to show you where the money

          24         came from.  It was from the US-EPA passed through

          25         the Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank.  And this is
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           1         $83 million as it relates to grants for clean

           2         water state revolving.

           3                 Lastly, pages 8 through 9 are a summary of

           4         your audit results.  Again, we had no material

           5         weaknesses, no significant deficiencies, no

           6         noncompliance that was noted during the audit.
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           7                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  Again, the

           8         finance committee matter heard a more detailed

           9         explanation of the review of the single report,

          10         which is a federal reporting requirement.  Do any

          11         of our commissioners have any questions with

          12         regard to the Single Audit Report?

          13                 (NO RESPONSE)

          14                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay, we have a

          15         motion.  We do have a second.  Any further

          16         discussion?

          17                 (NO RESPONSE)

          18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none.  All of

          19         those that are in favor will say, "Aye."

          20                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)

          21                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any

          22         opposed.

          23                 (NO RESPONSE)

          24                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are non-opposed

          25         and that motion carries.  The last matter before
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           1         the Finance Committee is Resolution 2016:25 which

           2         is acceptance of the Non-Union Defined Benefit

           3         Plan.  The chairman will move approval of 2016:25,

           4         seconded by Commissioner Kimball and Mr.

           5         Commissioner Farnum.  Discussion, Kyle?  Is there
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           6         some discussion and explanation?

           7                 MR. CONNORS:  So this is the audit of the

           8         Defined Benefit Pension Plan.  We're going to look

           9         at the net position.  It's the report with the

          10         Adirondack chairs.  On page 1, just as with the

          11         CAFR, we issued an unmodified opinion over the

          12         pension plan financial statements.  Pages 3

          13         through 6 are the management's discussion and

          14         analysis.  You will see on page 4 there's an

          15         increase in net position compared to the prior

          16         year of about $2.2 million, and that is largely

          17         due to contributions subsequent to year-end of

          18         $1.1 million to the plan assets.  Page 5, you'll

          19         see that employee contributions didn't increase

          20         significantly, but employer contributions went up

          21         quite a bit, and that is what lead to the higher

          22         funding ratio of a plan of 77 percent.

          23                 Page 7 is a breakout of the balance sheet,

          24         so you can see where your assets are being

          25         invested, what type of funds they're invested in
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           1         with Mass. Mutual, and page 8 is a more detailed

           2         breakout of plans income statement.  Pages 9

           3         through 19 are very similar to the notes of the

           4         financial statements, nothing too different to

           5         bring to your attention, as is the same with the
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           6         required supplementary information starting on

           7         page 20.  Those are the same schedules.  Lastly,

           8         our report on internal controls over financial

           9         reporting for the pension plan had no significant

          10         deficiencies or material weaknesses to bring to

          11         your attention.

          12                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Excellent.  Thank you

          13         very much.  Okay, we have a motion and a second to

          14         approve Resolution 2016:25 regarding the Non-Union

          15         Defined Benefit Plan.  Are there any comments or

          16         questions with regard to that report?  Comments or

          17         questions regarding the Non-Union Defined Benefit

          18         Plan?

          19                 (NO RESPONSE)

          20                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay, hearing none,

          21         all of those that are in favor will say, "Aye."

          22                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)

          23                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any

          24         opposed?

          25                 (NO RESPONSE)
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           1                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none

           2         opposed, and that motion carries.  Kyle, thank you

           3         very much.

           4                 MR. CONNORS:  Thank you for having me.
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           5                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  This is very

           6         informative, thank you.  And that also concludes

           7         the Report of the Finance Committee.  Moving along

           8         to other committee reports.  The personnel

           9         committee did not meet, neither did long-range

          10         planning.  The ad hoc internal ethics committee

          11         did not meet.  The executive committee also did

          12         not meet, nor did compensation committee meet.

          13         Legislative report?  Joanne, do you have a report

          14         for us today?

          15                 MS. MACERONI:  Just very briefly, Mr.

          16         Chairman.  In my June report, which as you know

          17         was days after the session ended, I reported on

          18         two major pieces of legislation changes to the

          19         public finance management board and the renewable

          20         energy statute.  In this report that you have

          21         before you, which is my final report, it includes

          22         an additional twelve pieces of legislation.  The

          23         most important one is the first one, which has

          24         changes to the Administrative Procedures Act.

          25         Legal counsel is presently reviewing that to see
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           1         what changes have been made and what changes we

           2         need to do to our procedures.

           3                 The other bills that I have listed, no

           4         real impact on the NBC, just changes in the law
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           5         that we need to know about.

           6                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  Anyone have

           7         any questions of Joanne regarding her legislative

           8         report?

           9                 (NO RESPONSE)

          10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  Joanne, thank

          11         you very much.  Next committee reporting is the

          12         Citizens Advisory Committee.  Is anyone here?

          13                 MS. SAMONS:  The chairman from the

          14         Citizens Advisory Committee is not here, but they

          15         did meet last week, and they had a quorum.  They

          16         received an update on the activities of the NBC

          17         over the summer.

          18                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  Thank you.

          19         Okay.  The next report is the Chairman's Report.

          20         Okay, first thing I'd like to talk about is the

          21         event of the Citizens Bank groundbreaking.  I want

          22         to tell everyone here that everyone from the Chief

          23         Executive Officer, Bruce Van Saun, the president,

          24         local president of Citizens Bank here in Rhode

          25         Island, the entire congressional delegation was
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           1         very complimentary of the Narragansett Bay

           2         Commission.

           3                 I was very proud to hear that a lot of
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           4         credit was given to the Narragansett Bay

           5         Commission for making that project come to

           6         fruition, and they were very effusive about the

           7         Narragansett Bay Commission and the fact that we

           8         don't get grid-locked in bureaucracy.  We keep our

           9         eye on the ball.  We like to be part of -- what I

          10         like to say -- we like to be part of the solution

          11         and not part of the problem, and it was very well

          12         received by a congressional delegation.  All of

          13         our state general officers who recognize the

          14         efforts of the Narragansett Bay Commission and the

          15         accomplishments, and it was a very proud moment

          16         for me.

          17                 As you know, this Board -- it must be five

          18         or six years ago -- recognized that we had to be

          19         looking at potential for expanding our system

          20         since we were losing our commercial and our

          21         industrial base, and we looked at where that

          22         expansion might occur.  It was through that

          23         planning and that foresight of this Board that

          24         this project was able to come to fruition on time.

          25         What I'd like to relate to you at this time, you
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           1         know, what exactly this means in terms of dollars

           2         and cents for the Narragansett Bay Commission.

           3                 So I asked Ray to put together a summary
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           4         of the pertinent facts, and I'd just like to take

           5         a moment to read some of these to you.  So that I

           6         understand correctly myself because they're

           7         impressive.  So, basically, we're going to be

           8         putting in about 7,000 feet of pipe.  The useful

           9         life of that pipe is 50 years and recent cost

          10         estimates of that is about $4,800,000.  Over the

          11         50-year life, that comes to about 96,000 per year.

          12         Citizens Bank is anticipated to pay in fees about

          13         $198,000 per year.  So we have a net of $102,000

          14         per year.  Additionally, there are direct

          15         connects, which would hopefully result in about an

          16         additional $47,000.  So the subtotal, just based

          17         on that alone, is about a net of $149,000.  Do I

          18         understand that?

          19                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MARSHALL:  Yes.

          20                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  A net to the

          21         Narragansett Bay Commission of an additional

          22         $149,000 annually.  Now, it goes beyond that,

          23         because new developments, what we know is on the

          24         drawing board right now are another 144 housing

          25         units, and that would be multi-family,
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           1         multi-family units, and 25 single-family units.

           2         That's on the drawing board right now.  That
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           3         should result in -- 144 units should result in an

           4         additional $67,000 a year and 25 housing units of

           5         another $11,000 a year.

           6                 In addition to that, potential indirect

           7         connections, 200 housing units for a potential of

           8         $94,000 per year.  So, at the end of the day, we

           9         have an expansion of our system.  We keep a major

          10         corporation here in Rhode Island, and the

          11         Narragansett Bay Commission should realize an

          12         additional $322,000 a year as a result of our

          13         investment and the foresight of this board.  I

          14         want to thank everyone here, you know, for their

          15         cooperation in making that happen.  It's going to

          16         be a wonderful magnificent investment for us, and

          17         the entire State of Rhode Island recognizes our

          18         efforts and our participation in this project.

          19         So, thank you very much.

          20                 Next order of business.  We don't have a

          21         lot of business coming up for the next couple of

          22         months, so we're going to make the next meeting on

          23         November the 1st.  That will serve as our October

          24         meeting and our November meeting.  So, if you want

          25         to make a note of that, November 1st would be the
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           1         next board meeting.  I'm very happy to see that

           2         there's finally some movement on the federal level
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           3         with some amendments to the Clean Water Act.  As

           4         you know, I have been pursuing Senator Reed and

           5         others of our congressional delegation to make

           6         more modern and have more consideration for the

           7         rate payers who have to pay the bill for the rules

           8         and regulations that are imposed upon us by the

           9         federal Clean Water Act.

          10                 I'm thrilled to see that finally it's

          11         getting some attention, and I intend to stay on

          12         top of our congressional delegation to see this

          13         through fruition.  Ray and Jamie met, as you

          14         heard, Congressman Langevin.  He has committed his

          15         support for those amendments, and he reiterated

          16         that to me last night.  And, finally, with regard

          17         to our energy program, I'm very pleased today to

          18         have here today Larry Lepore.  He's the general

          19         manager from the Rhode Island Convention Center

          20         who also has the burden, I should say, of managing

          21         the Dunkin' Donuts Center as well.

          22                 He's here today.  I'm going to introduce

          23         him in a moment, but, as you know, we're moving

          24         closer to getting -- moving toward our energy

          25         independence.  We are -- and you are going to here
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           1         more about this in a short while -- but the board
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           2         approved, and we're moving forward with concluding

           3         our business to acquire three more wind turbines

           4         in Coventry.  You're going to hear more about that

           5         during Executive Session.  And we have decided,

           6         the board decided, that a blend of energy

           7         methodologies would be beneficial.  And to that

           8         extent, the board approved us going out for a

           9         request for proposals for solar energy.

          10                 Our expectation and anticipation was that

          11         we would go out for 10 megawatts of additional

          12         power.  I think because -- in large part because

          13         NBC has really lead the state in development of

          14         power.  I think the convention center authority

          15         recognized that in some degree, and we have

          16         decided to participate and cooperate in a joint

          17         request for proposals in the amount of 15

          18         megawatts.

          19                 I think that's the number, 15 megawatts

          20         which would, hopefully, cover the needs of the

          21         convention center authority and the Dunkin' Donuts

          22         facility, and we'd like to solicit those

          23         proposals.  The details of our cooperation are yet

          24         to be determined, but we're informing the board

          25         that -- I know the original proposal, RFP, needs
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           1         to be amended to incorporate this new development,
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           2         and we'll be hitting the streets in the next

           3         couple of weeks.  So, Larry, I don't know, do you

           4         have anything you'd like to say?

           5                 MR. LEPORE:  Thank you, Commissioner.  You

           6         know, when the net metering became law, we were

           7         bombarded from every vendor in the country looking

           8         to sell us renewable energy.  We met with a number

           9         of them, and we quickly realized that we weren't

          10         qualified to understand some of their proposals,

          11         so we looked to other agencies -- other government

          12         agencies, certainly that have done a good job

          13         within the past.  And, basically, we talked to

          14         your staff here and we talked to the Rhode Island

          15         Airport Corporation.  We were also struggling,

          16         really -- they're having a difficult time now with

          17         their renewable energy.  They had an RFP that they

          18         awarded, and it's really in a holding pattern.

          19                 What we're finding is that speculators are

          20         out there selling an opportunity, but they really

          21         don't have the product to deliver.  So, last

          22         month, we approached our board, and we recommended

          23         to our board that -- to follow the leadership of

          24         the Bay Commission.  Certainly, we acknowledge

          25         that you are leaders when it comes to renewable
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           1         energy, and the board voted 12-0 to follow your

           2         lead and piggyback whatever RFP that you put out

           3         on the street.  Certainly, we would like at some

           4         point once you make a determination, to come in

           5         and have that proposal before our board so they

           6         can approve it.  We think that this is not only an

           7         opportunity for this, but probably the way of the

           8         future that, you know, quasi-agencies should look

           9         to partner for better rates.

          10                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you, Larry,

          11         very much, and thank you for being there today.

          12         You know, we've been advocating for this for a

          13         very long time.  We're talking about

          14         regionalization, we've always gone a long way to

          15         assist other agencies, other cities and towns that

          16         are not even in our service area.  And this is a

          17         good opportunity for us to participate with

          18         another quasi, and I am looking forward to it, and

          19         I am actually convinced that it's going to be a

          20         successful joint venture relationship.  Thank you

          21         very much.

          22                 One last matter with regard to the

          23         Greenville Avenue Citizens Bank.  I'll call the

          24         Citizens Bank Project.  We're putting in 7,000

          25         square feet -- 7,000 feet of pipe.  I've had

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)

                                                                    51



file:///Z|/...20Meetings-Minutes%202016/Board%20of%20Commissioners%20Meeting%20Minutes%20Open%20Session%209-20-2016.txt[10/24/2016 4:14:15 PM]

           1         conversations with Citizens Bank, so some of the

           2         officials at Citizens Bank, and it appears as

           3         though the water requirement that's presently

           4         available on Greenville Avenue supplied by

           5         Providence Water is inadequate to support both the

           6         fire suppression and the domestic water needs.  To

           7         those ends, there's going to have to be a

           8         significant improvement in the waterline capacity

           9         along Greenville Avenue.

          10                 In addition to that, Citizens Bank is

          11         going to have to install -- I don't think the

          12         numbers are in yet -- but somewhere between a

          13         600,000 and a 1 million gallon water tank, which

          14         is on-site, which is also to support fire

          15         suppression needs for the 420,000 square foot

          16         development.  We were asked how we might be able

          17         to cooperate and facilitate and coordinate, I

          18         guess, more than anything else, the installation

          19         of the waterline along with the sewer line.  I

          20         suggested that the logical approach would be for

          21         us to manage the entire project.  However, we, we

          22         as a waste water agency, could not absorb the cost

          23         of the installation of a waterline, but what we

          24         could do is to basically coordinate it so that

          25         that coordination effort would help to keep the
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           1         building scheduled and the delivery scheduled.

           2                 So, I started a dialogue with some of the

           3         engineers involved and with the Executive Director

           4         and Laurie Horridge, of course, to make sure and

           5         understand that we had the statutory authority to

           6         do that.  And, as a matter of rote, we many times

           7         replace waterlines and gas lines, which happen to

           8         be in the path of our work, usually as an upgrade.

           9         So it didn't pose any statutory issues; correct?

          10                 MS. HORRIDGE:  Correct.

          11                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So the details have

          12         not been worked out, but Laurie is working on the

          13         logistics and the legal details, but basically

          14         what we're anticipating is that when the plans are

          15         ready -- which I'm informed are about 60 percent

          16         complete -- as we normally do, we put those plans

          17         out to bid.  Hopefully, we'll get a pricing

          18         consistent with what our estimate is, and then

          19         once we have a contractor on board, we'll bring

          20         Citizens Bank in with our people and our

          21         engineers, and we'll talk about what the

          22         additional cost so it will be identifiable.  That

          23         would be the cost that Citizens Bank will pay.

          24                 So, we'll pay it.  We'll install it, we'll

          25         pay it, and then Citizens Bank will reimburse us
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           1         for our cost over a series of payments.  I don't

           2         know, that hasn't worked out yet, but over a

           3         series of payments, which would also include our

           4         cost of borrowing.  So, while we're laying out the

           5         capital, the bank, I understand, is better than

           6         anybody's.  There's going to be an interest rate

           7         associated with that.  So, the details haven't

           8         been worked out yet, but when they are ready, we

           9         will report those to you.  But to make absolutely

          10         certain that this project proceeds on time and on

          11         budget for not only us but for Citizens and for

          12         the City of Providence Water Supply, we're going

          13         to undertake this.

          14                 And everybody is just thrilled to death, I

          15         can tell you, that NBC is in command here because

          16         they know it will get done, and it will get done

          17         on time and on budget.  So, I just want to inform

          18         the board of that, and that includes the

          19         chairman's report, unless there are any questions

          20         with regard to things I spoke of just now.

          21         Anyone?  All right.

          22                 New business?

          23                 (NO RESPONSE)

          24                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No further new

          25         business.  Other business?  Commission Farnum?

                                         (ROUGH DRAFT)
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           1                 COMMISSIONER FARNUM:  Mr. Chairman, I'd

           2         like to recommend that the board enter into

           3         Executive Session pursuant to Section 42-46-5A2

           4         and 5 to discuss several issues as they relate to

           5         CSO Phase II construction-related litigation, as

           6         well as to discuss issues surrounding the lease of

           7         real property relative to NBC's agreement with

           8         Wind Energy Development, LLC.  Do I hear a motion?

           9                 COMMISSIONER DiCHIRO:  So moved.

          10                 COMMISSIONER FARNUM:  Do I hear a second?

          11                 COMMISSIONER MacQUEEN:  Second.

          12                 COMMISSIONER FARNUM:  I did.  All those in

          13         favor will say, "Aye."

          14                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)

          15                 COMMISSIONER FARNUM:  Are there any

          16         opposed?

          17                 (NO RESPONSE)

          18                 COMMISSIONER FARNUM:  Hearing none, motion

          19         carries.  At this time I would like to ask that

          20         all members of the public please excuse

          21         themselves.

          22                 (ENTERED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 12:12

          23         P.M.)

          24                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Back into regular

          25         session.
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           1                 (AT THIS TIME THE BOARD ENTERS BACK INTO

           2         OPEN SESSION AT 12:45 P.M.)

           3                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are we going to seal

           4         these --

           5                 COMMISSIONER DiCHIRO:  I make a motion

           6         that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive

           7         Session be sealed.

           8                 DR. BURROUGHS:  Second.

           9                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Seconded by

          10         Commissioner Burroughs.  All in favor will say,

          11         "Aye."

          12                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)

          13                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Any opposed?

          14                 (NO RESPONSE)

          15                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  None opposed, motion

          16         carries, and the minutes shall remain sealed.  Now

          17         that we are back into regular session; since

          18         Commissioner Montanari is not with us, I do

          19         believe that Commissioner MacQueen has a motion.

          20                 COMMISSION MacQUEEN:  Adjourn.

          21                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to

          22         adjourn by Commissioner MacQueen, seconded by

          23         Commissioner Farnum.  All in favor of adjournment

          24         will say:  Aye."

          25                 (UNANIMOUS VOTE)
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           1                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Any opposed?

           2                 (NO RESPONSE)

           3                 CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none

           4         opposed and the motion carries.

           5                 (HEARING CONCLUDED AT 12:46 P.M.)

           6

           7

           8

           9

          10

          11

          12

          13

          14

          15

          16

          17

          18

          19

          20

          21

          22

          23

          24
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           1                      C-E-R-T-I-F-I-C-A-T-I-O-N

           2

           3         STATE OF RHODE ISLAND AND PROVIDENCE PLANTATIONS

           4         PROVIDENCE, SC.

           5

           6

           7                 I, SALLY BRASSARD, do hereby certify that

           8         the foregoing is a true, accurate, and complete

           9         transcript of my notes taken at the above-entitled

          10         proceeding.

          11                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my

          12         hand this 28th day of September, 2016.

          13

          14

          15

          16

          17                          ________________________________
                                      SALLY BRASSARD, CSR/RPR
          18                          NOTARY PUBLIC
                                      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:  1/16/17
          19

          20

          21

          22

          23

          24
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